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MUSEUM CORNER

We are inthe process of cataloging many artifacts that have
been given tw the museum during the pust few months. The
following articles huve been added to our cellection recently:

Mary Stead Glass desk sign of Dr. H.R. Burns
Jennie Milano Buton Kit-
issued to soldiers during World War 1.

Many favorable comments have been made about the anticles
that are exhibiled in the windows of the museum. Marion Junior.,
with the help of other commission members. is responsible for
the displays and aiwuys has many new and interesting ideas for
them. We are rying to find a way 10 prevent mterials that wre
put in the windows from being damaged by the sun. Althoush
the windows have been treated with an invisible coating 1o cut
down damage done by ulira-viclet rays, we have found that a
certzin amount of fading sull occurs, We will be able to display
many more artifacts if this problem can be solved.

The exhibit featuring the one-hundredth anniversary of the
Steinbaugh Ace Hardware Company has beer moved frony the
windows of the museum to the cases inside.

The trim on the outside of the store museum has been
repainted this summer. and the sign will be restored some time
soon. A contract has been let for the repairs 1o the foundation
of the house. and 1t is hoped that this work will be completed
5001,

Although we were not able to have our auction on July 4.
this vear. we are planning other fund-raising projects for the
future. We are dependent upon fund-raising and dosations for
money to mamtain our buildings.

We would like to remind afl the high school clusses who
are planning reenions this year o please give any materials they
are using for their reenions to the museurms as these articles will
become purt of the history of Louisville,

Please plan to visit our museum buildings on Libor Day.
September 7. Although we have not planned a special progr:;m
fur this occasion. we are hoping o change some of the exhibits
using ariifacts that bave been received recently.

We are happy 10 welcome us a new member of our Commis-
ston, Richard Fraachini, Dick ts a nutive of Louisville and hus
been working as o volunteer at the museum for several years.
We teel thut he will be g real asset o our group. ’

_ The musedims are open on Thursday aftemoons from 100 pom.
il 3:00 pam. and speciad tours can be arranged by calling the
Sinuseum at H05-904%,

SOCIETY MEMBERSHIP

Since dues for membership in the Louisville Historica! Society
wiil be due on September |, we are enclosing a form ¢ be used
in renewing your membership, in this newsleter. The following
people paid dues twice last year so it will not be necessary for
them to send payment this year.

Joe and JoAnn Perrelli
Kathleen Crannell

Elaine Jacoe

Mrs. Gearge Bosko
Berta Zurini

Churles and {ona Thomas
Ruth rAffolier) Babeeck
Esther DeiForge

Eugene and Pal DiCarlo

We hope this list 1s complete, but if you feel that you have
already paid your 1992-1993 dues. please notify us. We would
also like to thank all of you for your continued support—without
it we would be unable to maintain ovr buildings and collect the
history of our city.

LOUISVILLE
HISTORICAL
COMMISSION MEMBERS

Virginia Caranci ........... 666-6235
Emajane Enrienra ... GOG6-4145
Richard Franchini ......... 666-6272
John Garcia ................ 666-7863
Marfon Juiior ... ... 666-8283
Donald Ross ................ 666-65836
Eifeen Schmidr ............. 066-6853
Patricia Scholes ... .. 673-0311
Puatricia Seader ... 666-8385

MEMORIAL DONATIONS

In Memory of
Lorettu Jucoe
Connie {Mudonnay Mondragon




: A ONE-HUNDREDTH ANNIVERSARY

On June 6. 1992, & very imporant anniversary was celebraed
as Steinbaugh Ace Hardware Company commemorated one
hundred veurs of being in business in Louisville, Steinbaugh’s
has been owned and operated by members of the Steinbaugh
famiiy during this entre period. Through good times and bad
Steinbaugh’s has continued to play an imporant role in the
history of Louisville.

It ail began in the small village of Honef, Germany, where
Johin Jucob Steinbaugh was born on January 22, 1868, His family
emizrated to the United States when he was seventeen vears of
age. They first settled in Sheridun, Towa. but afier a few years
J.J struck out on his own. He spent some tme in St Joseph,
Missourr. learning the blacksmithing trade. After working at his
trade in Salt Lake City for a vear and in Denver for serveral
vears. he settled in Louisville in 1890 and begun working for
Sam Lemon as a blucksmuth. When Mr. Steinbaugh arrived here.
the population of the town was approximately two hundred: and
many businesses. including several saloons, a shoe shop. two
grocery stores, and the blacksmith shop were located on Front
Street, On June 6. 1892, he opened his own blacksmith shop in
compettion with his former employer.

He married Elizabeth Strietz in Louisville in 1891, and
three children were born to them, A son. Herman. was born in
E892, and later two zirls were bom into the family—Gertrude
who died at the age of en—and Amelia. The family lived in a
house which was locaied where the post office now stands on
Front Street and Pine. Later they moved te a smail building on
the southwest corner of Front and South Streets. This building
wils eventually moved across the street, and a new home for
them was built by Mike Fubrizio and his father. They continued
residing in this house unnl 1935 when a brick house was con-
strucied on the comer of McKinley and Pine. Mr, Steinbaugh
resided there until his death on December 3, 1930, except for
twa years after his retirement in 1941 which he spent working
on his ranch near Boulder Creek. During this time. he managed
the ranch with the help of only one hired hand.

1.J. Steinbaugh was always very active in civic affairs. He
served several terms on the town council, and when the fence
was consiructed at the ball park he donated all the posts and slabs.

Many of the entries made in his first sales book were written
in German. His first credit entry was made on June 13, 1892,
when John Taylor charged $1.00 for a crossbar for a buggy and
30¢ for the welding of o buggy spring, Most of the work recorded
in his early records was done on farm machinery such as mowers,
cultivators, and binders. Other work performed in his shop in-
cluded shoeing horses, repairing buggies. tire setting and putting
spokes into wagon wheels. Bits and shovels were also sharpened,
and the charge for sharpening a bit was 15¢. Since all the coul
mings had their own blacksmith shops. the farmers end rasidents
of the town were Steinbuugh's main source of business.

In 1902, after hardware supplies were added 0 his inven-
tory. & room was built onto the original building. Mis plan wag
for his son, Herman. 1o tuke over the management of the hardware
department. Herman stocked shefves i the new addition with
hardware supplies and covered the rural arca surrounding the
town selling hardware and machinery. Even after he jomned his
father tn the business in 1908, Herman continued selling mer-
chundise traveling by horse and buggy around the country from
the muuntuins ¢ the farms 0 the area as far nonh as the town
of Mead. Finally in 1911, 2 Model T Ford was purchased: and
fis traveling became somewhat easier except for the fact that
nerosds had been buslt in much of the territony e covered
makimnyg 1onecessary for himn o follow the wagon pas,

More space was purchased and buildings were adce

o
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business grew. When J.J. decided 1o discontinue the hly
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business in 1935, the company acquired their first x‘ubwm;ef
stock of fumiture although some furniiure was sold o early a\‘ | g”';

The final expansion of the business was mpge in o juss
shortly afier World War [, when the lamberyard and byl "
supplies were added.

Many of the homes bL{lEI m Louisville ufter [be lumberarg wey
opened were constructed of muterials purchased from Steinbuush'
It was Steinbaugh’s policy to provide all the materiylg used E:{h
building of a home and 10 extend cradit 1o the homeawner LRt
4 lean for the mongage was received. Arthat time the hOTHED‘V&,’ﬂé
paid for the building materials, and Herman Steinbaugh usuaih
made o gift of a small appliance or lamp 10 f‘ormuil\;ciosc th
deul—usuaity insuring the patronage of a life-Jone ¢ A

Although Herman had worked with his fathey for mun
years, he didn't take over the management of the business upij
1941 when J.J. retired. Herman was marmied 1o Mue Aiﬁ)-EU[[ 0
Lafayette, and they became the purents of eight childrenem iy,
sons. Herbert, Glenn. Jack, Bob, Jim, and three davghiery
Thelma. Bewy, and Darlene. After serving in the armed forces
during World War fl. Herman's sons, Herberr, Gienn. ang Jacf:
Joined him in the business. Bob Steinhaugh was Killed tn ar
airplane crash while serving in the armed forces in 1932 The
youngest son. Jim, came into the business g few vears after the
others, and in 1951 the name of the company was changed from
1.1 Steinbaugh to the Steinbaugh Lumber Company. In 1054 ¢
brick front. picture windows. and a more modern facade wers add;gc
to provide a more contemperary look 1o the From Street building,

In 1957 when the company celebrated its 651h anniver:uz“v.
many spectal events were held throughout the week . A chuck
wagon dinner was held on Sunday 10 begin the celebration and
another chuck wagon dinner ended the festivities the nex; Saturduy.
The employees all wore costumes depicting the 1880°s era and
many items from the early days wers on display. The grand prize
was a Speed Queen automatic washer. Several door prizes were
given out to customers. One very interesting event which ook
place was a demonstration by representatives from Westinghouse
of their new electronic oven. Other demonsirations of new products
by various companies were held during the celebration.

The compuny discontinued seiling fumber in 1967 when
the lumber business became very competitive,

On September 5. 1974, a very destructive fire completely
destroyed the Front Street store and the entire stock of merchan-
dise. The ioss from the fire was estimated 10 be $350.000 and
was described by some old-timers as “the worst fire they had
ever seen in Louisville.” The Colorado Bureau of Investjeation
reparted that flammable liguid had been poured over the wooden
fToors. and the flames spread so quickly there was very little the
Volunteer Fire Department could do to control the flames. A
few charred and water-sozked records were recovered tfrom 4
safe, but historical recurds, photographs of the family and bus-
mess buildings, and a collection of mininy equipmgn{ and other
artifucts were destroved. Although the mvestigation showed thal
the cause of the Tire was arson. ne arrests were ever made.
Toward the end of September 1974, Steinbaugh s relocaied 10
the building at 801 Main as o temporary focation.

After Herman Sweinbaugh's death Glenn ook over the sale
ownership of the business, since his brathers decided 1o retire
He purchased the building at 301 Muim where busineas it c(m-‘
unmued us uspul. Same of the previous vecupunts of (he butlding
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were the Stute Mercantile Store, Carveth Bros. and Dalby, and
Joe Dalby's wocery store. When exiensive remodeling of the buil iding
avas undertaken, care was taken (o insure that the Duzidmﬁ would
Cretain ity place on the National Register of historical hu;!dmm

One of the biz changes Glenn has made in the business is
that the women of the family now take a very active pan in the
company. Glenn's wife, Aline, fends a hel ping hand occasionally,
and his two daughrers—Kuren Scarpells and Mary Rizzuto—are
both employees. When both 1), and Herman were in charge none
of the women of the fumily wers on the payrolf alt hough they did
work in the store on a lemporary basis from time (o time,

Glenn Steinbaugh mastied Aline DiGinlfanardy in Louisville

1930 and they have four children—Tomi. Karen. Ron, and Mury.

A.E hough Glenn is not quite ready 10 renre, he plans o wm over
more of the management duties o his sens, Tom and Ron,

The Steinbaugh store became an affibate of the Ace Hardware
Company aboul thirty-five years ago. As the discount stores have
become so popular, the hardware business has become more and
more competitive so their association with Ace Hardware has helped
them become specialized and enabled to adapt 1o the changes that
have occurred in the industry. Many of their customers agree that
if you can't find any ftem at Steinbaugh's vou probably won't find
it anywhere. Since the Main Street stwre has only about half the
space as the old stere had. some of the inventory had to be cut
back, but housewares. hardware, some sporting goods. products
for gardens and lawns. electrical and plumbing supplies, as well
as paint, walipaper, and carpeting remain in stock. Future expansion
rerains a possibility.

J.1. Slemnbaugh often beasted that his was the only store in
“nlorado which sold everything necessary to completely build and
mish a home, and ioday the business continues 10 thrive as
generation after generation of Louisville residents patronize the
store. According o Glenn. much of the credit for their sucress iy
due to thelr slogan. “Where Service Counts.”

Congratulauens 1o an industrious, hard-working family. who
has contributed o much to the well-being of our community. Many
have expressed the hope that the Stembaunh s will be serving
Louisville for another one hundred years.

(Some of the mformarion found in this article was taken from “The
Louisville Times” dated May 31,1967, and from “The Lowisvifle Times™
dared May 37, 1992,

“A SPECIAL USE OF PAPER”

The following article was found on the front page of “The
Louisville Times”™ dated May 31, 1957, which commemorated
Steinbaugh's sixty-fifth year of business in Louisville, We
thought it was especially interesting during this time of recycling
and preserving paper.

Special Uses — Ton of Paper

This is a special invitation 10 the pecple of this arez 1o come
10 Louisville next week for Steinbaurh’s anniversary celebration
and sufe, und to visit the other business houses of the town.

This edition of The Times is the biggest ever put out in Lowsville,
There are 6,000 copies. Its 42 pages contwin 47 new and old
pictures. It covers all of Boulder county except Beulder and
Longmuont.
:.F;m pounds vl news ink and ever a tun of newspring— 2,100
cunds e were wsed anits muking. And no elling how many
mun-hours, but i prossiman apd five airks 1o fold and amsemble
the pupers were added 1o the regular crew ol The Times,

Page 3

THE FLOOD OF 1938

The severe weather that has hit some of our stae in the
past few weeks brings to mind the vielenl storm that begun on
Septeniber 2. 1938, and did so much demage in Bouider Cuuntv
According 10 the moislure measuring Instruments at the i'i\dlc-
electric plant of Public Service .45 inch of rain had falien by
five o'clock Friday afiernoon. by midnizht 3.52 inches were
recorded, wuh an additional (14 inch fal Img by eight o'clock
Saturday morning—-making atotal 4,11 inches of rainfall in lesy
than [\x«-em}ufour hours,

The popular resurt of Eldorado Springs was severelv dum-
aged by the flood which struck around seven o'clock on Friday
evening and continued throughout the night. Heavy losses occur-
red as the pavilion. bath houses. part of the dance hall, and al)
of the bridges, including the swaying bridge which crossed the
river, were cartied dway by the swift waters, Two houses were
also carmed away. The restdents reported that the roar of the
creek scunded Dke thunder and many left their homes o seek
higher ground on the hillside where they spent the night in the
open. The road east of Elderado Springs was tlooded and the
bridges leading into the area were washed away.

The Matt Betton orchestra. which was made up of eleven
University of Kansas students. was performing in the Eldorado
Springs dance hall at that time. Two young men from the or-
chestry were able 1o make their way on fuot to Boulder Saturday
morning and reported the damuge done during the night of terror.
The music library of the orchestra, valued at $1.000 including
many arrangements which could not be replaced and all of the
Imstruments except two saxaphones were destroyed,

Water filled the Marshall and Community ditches as it flooded
over the headgates which, surprisingly, did not give way. Many
people living in Marshall climbed the hill 1o the Nick Conda home
when the nsing waters threatened their own houses.

Reads leading into Bouider were badly dumaged by flooding
and afso by dirt and rock which was washed onto the roadbeds.

Arapahoe Road east of Boulder was covered by a fool or
maore of water, The new golf course located three miles east of
Boulder on Arapahoe Road was covered by several feet of water
which carried sard. rocks. wood, and other debris along with
it. Several inches of water covered the floor of the club house,
and many homes thut fuced the goif course were damaged by
the flocd.

The bridge east of Superior on the Denver highway and the
approaches to it were destroyed by the fluoding of Coul Creek
which was normally dry,

The main line of Burlington. Colorado. and Southern Rail-
road was washed out south of Louisville. A roaring wall of water
raced down Coal Creek Canvon. tearing out a forty foot section
of the road a mile east of 1own although the bridge itself held;
this proved to be disastrous. This dumage resulted in the death
of Mrs. Walter M. Bovd. and caused Dr. Walter Bovd 1o suffer
very serious injuries. As Dr. and Mrs. Boyd were returning to
Louisville from Denver on Friduy night. their car sank inwo the
waters where the road had been cut away. Dr. Bovd was thrown from
the cuar and rose to the wop of the water. In spite of his very
serious injurtes, he dived into the water severa! times attemipting
to free his wile who was trapped in the car. Realizing his attempts
were futife. he run into the wwn seeking help. When he reached
the Pubiic Service building, he found officers there who blew
the town siren summoning aid for him. A phyasician was called
W attend Dro Bovd s injuries and rescue crews proceeded 1o the
focution where the car had disappeared into the water,

{cantined ]
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Dr. Boyd suffered a fractured shull and other less serous
injurics. A Public Service repair crew and practically the entire
town began attempts to rescue Mrs. Bovd. but the waier was 00
deep for them to succeed in their effors, By five o'clock on
Saturday monring the waters had receded and the top of the car
was visible. Grappling hooks were used by shenff™s officers and
Mrs. Boyd's body was recovered at approximately 330 am.
Saturday. The entire town seemed io be in mourming for this popular
young couple. Dr. Boyd underwent brain surgery at Boulder
Community Hospital, and after recovering from his injunes, he
resumed his medical practice in Lousville and remained here for
a number of yeurs,

Due to the heroism of a miner who worked at the Hi-Way
Mine, rmany more accidents were averted. After having driven
across the road at 10:30 p.m., he realized there was a soft spot in
the road and it could be dangerous, so with a lantem in his hand
he returned to the spot to warn others to wrm back.

The wife of Dr. Jack Bartholomew, who was retuming
town from Denver, saw the light of the lantern. turned arcund and
proceeded to Lafayetie where the water was several inches high
over the pavement. and then drove into Lowisville. The miner
remained at the daneerous spot in the road for more than two
hours, warning the miners who worked at the Hi-Way Mine of
the dangerous road conditions. As Dr. Boyd's car waveled along
the road at approximately 12:28 a.m., the rainfall was so heavy
he could not see the light of the miner’s lantem. Although the

miner’s nume is not known, he was commended for his actions
which saved many iives thuat night.

Althcugh a number of livestock were carmed away by the
swift waters and debris covered the surrounding fields, there were
no other serious injuries or deaths other than Dr. and M, Buevd.

The Red Cross stood by to assist victims of the flood in any
way they could, and reliel materials were obtained from the federa
warehouse in Boulder.

It was noted that the Denver and Interurban busses were
operating throughout the storm on Friday night and all day on
Saturday, They were reported 10 be running close to their regular
cchedules. The busses traveling to Denver by way of Louisville
hed w go back to Boulder o nroceed to Denver because of the
road conditions caused by the flooding of Coal Creek.

Approximately 250 WPA workers were called out to work
repairing tlood damage to roads, bridges. snd other property in
the county. All county roads were opened (0 traffic by Saturday
afternoon; although most of the mountain roads were still dangerous
to travel, they were passable. Road damagas were estimated to be
many thousands of doilars.

Residents of Louisville and Superior recalled the flood that
had struck their communities in [935, and agreed that the stom
of 1938 was much worse.

(The infermation in the above artivle was taken from the edition of the
Bowdder Daily Camera dated Sumirday, September 3, 1938.}

Louisville Historical Commission
749 Main Street
Louisville, CO 80027




